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[bookmark: _Toc433723929]Administrative
1. [bookmark: _Ref431477203]Q: There is a requirement for bidders to be registered with the California Secretary of State, but is that a requirement for all subcontractors as well or just the lead/prime on the bid?
A: No, only the prime contractor must be registered with the California Secretary of State. 
2. Q: The questions that are being asked today, will those be considered formally submitted questions for comments?
A: Yes, oral questions at any of the three workshops will be posted in the formal Q&A’s.
3. [bookmark: _Ref431390881]Q: Will these slides be made available to participants?
A: Yes, both the slides and the WebEx recordings have been posted at: http://energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306.
4. Q: Will any of the grants require Legislative approval annually?
A: No, the grants will not require Legislative approval. However, all awards require approval at a California Energy Commission Business Meeting.
5. Q: Is there a LinkedIn subgroup for the Innovation Clusters solicitation?
A: Yes, there is a LinkedIn subgroup, please check bit.ly/CalEnergyNetwork and browse the list of subgroups available. 
6. Q: The font required is Arial 11; do the resumes and previous work products need to be in that font or just the core content?
A: Only the core content needs to be in Arial 11 font. Resumes and previous work products do not need to be in Arial 11.
7. Q: We are a young organization. For the organization references described in Attachment 9, can we provide references for relevant activities engaged in by team members before our organization's incorporation?
A: Yes, references may be for key team members prior to the incorporation of an organization.
8. Q: Please confirm that the terms and conditions only apply to the Cluster and not to the ventures that would be incubated in the Cluster?
A:  The terms and conditions of an agreement entered into pursuant to this GFO would apply to the recipient. However, subcontractors are subject to flow-down provisions per Exhibit C, Section 7.b; such terms and conditions would not apply to a venture that arises as a result of the programs this GFO funds.   
9. Q: Can nonprofits qualify as a "small business” or “microbusiness" so long as they fit the max employee’s requirement?
A: A business must fit within the eligibility requirements and be formally certified by the Department of General Services, Office of Small Business and DVBE Services. As a reminder, State law does not allow preference points to be awarded for small businesses or microbusinesses for grant applications.
10. Q: Could you elaborate how disabled veterans, minority-owned, women-owned, and small business will be factored in the evaluation criteria?
A: State law prohibits applicant characteristics, such as minority- and women-owned businesses, from being factored into the evaluation criteria. However, the Energy Commission encourages a wide range of diverse applicants to submit proposals to our funding opportunities.
Once projects are selected for each solicitation, the Energy Commission will send out a voluntary survey to the funding recipient, asking the prime contractor and all subcontractors questions about their geographic locations and whether they identify as an underrepresented group.  The Energy Commission will use this information to establish a baseline of current participation rates in Energy Commission funding opportunities and determine where additional efforts should occur. The Energy Commission will report results of the survey in EPIC Annual Reports for the CPUC and the Legislature.  
[bookmark: _Toc433723930]General
11. Q: The scope of work requirements state that all project activities must be scheduled to occur within 3-4 years of the project start date. This appears to conflict with the anticipated term length of 6 years, described on page 10 of the manual. Can you reconcile?
A: All work must be completed by March 31, 2022. The solicitation manual has been amended to reconcile this. Please see the amended solicitation manual on the Energy Commission’s solicitation website: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306.
12. Q: The standard terms and conditions give the Energy Commission, CPUC and any entity that provides electricity to ratepayers a transferable license to all IP. Does this apply to entrepreneurs, researchers and companies that receive services from the Cluster? 
A: It does not. 
13. Q: Who owns the incubator/accelerator?  There is no mention of partial ownership or other encumbrance except for IP rights.
A: The applicant owns the incubator/accelerator.
[bookmark: _Toc433723931]Proposal Submission
14. Q: Is the electronic submission a new feature? Will there be demonstration available? 
A: The electronic submission is a new feature that the Energy Commission recently released for grant funding opportunities only.  The Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System is available at https://gss.energy.ca.gov/.  The online tool allows applicants to submit their electronic documents to the Energy Commission prior to the date and time specified in this solicitation.  A live demo tutorial explaining the steps and processes of submitting your application through this tool is available here:  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZDNhPaCt_yk&feature=youtu.be. 
15. Q: For previous work products, will you be allowed to link this on the website for the electronic submittals?  
A: Yes, applicants may provide links to publicly available documents or materials in place of providing copies of such documents.
16. Q: Does the person who registers on the Grant Solicitation System need to be related to the applicant or actually be the applicant? Can you submit a client’s application?
A: No, the person who registers does not need to be related to the applicant or actually be the applicant. The submitter may submit a client’s application on the client’s behalf.
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17. Q: Are IOUs considered eligible applicants for this grant?
A: IOUs are eligible to be applicants for this solicitation.  
18. Q: Must the project manager, administrator, and accounting officer for the project be different people?
A: The project manager, administrator, and accounting officer for agreements resulting from this solicitation are allowed to be the same person.

19. [bookmark: _Ref432081437]Q: Does priming the Innovation Cluster make you ineligible to prime in the SEED Initiative and Market Assessment? 
A: No, being a prime applicant for this solicitation does not make applicants ineligible from applying as the prime for RFP-15-305: Sustainable Energy Entrepreneur Development Initiative and RFP-15-304: Connecting Emerging Energy Technologies and Strategies to Market Needs and Opportunities. 
20. Can an organization be a lead applicant on both a Regional Cluster grant and the SEED grant? Would that be considered a conflict of interest?
A: Please see the response to question 19. 
21. Q: Are multiple teams with Principal investigator from the same campus allowed?
A: Yes, multiple teams from the same campus will be allowed. 
22. Q: Are you seeking one entrepreneur to support one cluster, or would he/she be capable of winning multiple cluster regions? 
A: Prime applicants may submit multiple applications, though each application may address only one of the project groups.  Subcontractors are allowed to be on proposals for multiple groups as well.  See page 1 of the solicitation manual. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. 
23. Q: How will the Clusters be required to go about making information on their services accessible- like via internet/website?
A: Applicants should describe their approach for information accessibility in their proposal.
[bookmark: _Toc433723933]Geographic Boundaries 
24. Q: Are the counties listed in the solicitation manual exclusive or are other counties eligible to participate? 
A: All counties in California are now eligible to participate in this solicitation. Please see the amended solicitation manual on the Energy Commission’s solicitation website: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306.
25. Q: It is encouraging to see the recent CEC call for proposals for Regional Energy Innovation Clusters.  I wanted to confirm that under GFO 15-306, Yolo County, home to UC Davis, is not considered either part of the Central Valley Region or the Bay Area Region or therefore not eligible for project funding.  Note, Yolo County is boarded by both regions and has a larger population than several counties that are eligible. Please clarify.
A: Please see the response to question 24.
26. Q: I saw that the solicitation for the Innovation Clusters came out and it looks like San Bernardino and Riverside County are excluded.  Is there any way a cluster could be housed in one of those counties?  Assuming not, could a cluster fund projects or entrepreneurs from outside of the zones identified in the cluster RFP? 
A:  Please see the response to question 24.
27. Q: Is Sacramento County eligible?  SMUD is not mentioned as a targeted utility.  
[bookmark: _GoBack]A: Sacramento County is eligible, but projects and any entrepreneurs supported through the clusters must provide benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers.  SMUD is not an IOU.
28. Q: Sacramento is listed as an eligible county but Sacramento is not in IOU territory, how specific does the applicant need to be with regards to describing the benefits having to fall within an IOU service territory? 
A: Applicants must describe how the services they provide will support entrepreneurs developing technologies that could be adopted by California’s IOU electric ratepayers, deployed in an IOU service territory, or generally provide benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers if adopted by the market. How well the applicant describes these benefits will be factored into scoring criteria for the proposal.
29. Q: Can Universities and other community-serving programs that support the launch and growth of clean energy companies across the state support all four clusters or only the cluster where they are located? 
A:  Universities and other community-serving programs may support all four clusters; however they must apply for each group separately.  In addition, the ability of these organizations to ensure entrepreneurs within the region can easily access the services provided will be factored in the scoring criteria.
30. The WCEC is located on the UC Davis campus in Yolo County – we see that Yolo County is not listed as one of the Central valley counties under this call (in p. 7). Would the CEC still be open to accepting an application from us? If this is possible, would we be restricted to proposing for the Central Valley region, or for example, could we propose that we would target Southern California?
A:  Please see the responses to question 24 and 29. 
31. Q: Can you characterize what you mean by cluster and the logic behind the geographic approach because in many cases collaborations may stand beyond the geography.  Can you comment whether partnerships outside given geography is acceptable?
A: Please see the response to question 29.
32. Q: As you assemble your teams in the Innovation Clusters, there is intellectual expertise that will be found outside the region.  Are we to assume the Energy Commission is encouraging statewide teaming partners rather than limiting a team to the immediate region?
A: Please see the response to question 29.
33. Q: CA has developed specialized and expensive laboratories and demonstration sites that have previously served the statewide energy community. The GFO infers that the entrepreneurs must be served from their own county-based Innovation Cluster, but their regional Innovation Cluster may not have, or be capable of replicating, these unique facilities located elsewhere in the state. In such a circumstance, would it be possible for an out-of-region entrepreneur to utilize these specialized resources of another Innovation Cluster as long as no more than 20% of the regional Innovation Cluster’s annual budget is spent on out-of-region entrepreneurs?
A: Clusters will be allowed to provide services to entrepreneurs and businesses outside of the Cluster region as long as a) the entrepreneur, business, or researcher is located in California; and b) the technology being developed provides benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers in IOU service territories. 
Before a Cluster can provide services to a researcher, business or entrepreneur outside the region, the Cluster must first get approval from the Energy Commission project manager and provide an explanation as to why the specialized services needed by the researcher are not available in other Clusters. 
34. Q: Let’s say our cluster had exceptional expertise and demonstration capabilities in XYZ technology, but a promising entrepreneur happens to be located outside of that cluster, will there be no opportunity for that entrepreneur to take advantage of a cluster outside of their region?
A: Please see the response to question 33.
35. Q: Is there an issue around providing services to entrepreneurs and researchers who we attract to the cluster by virtue of the fact that our company is located in Oakland and that is where we provide the services?
A: No, there is no issue as long as the entrepreneur plans to relocate to the region at some point in the near-term.
[bookmark: _Toc433723934]Project Support Activities
36. [bookmark: _Ref432069574]Q: The solicitation calls out 2 of the 3 phases in EPIC, Applied R&D and Market Facilitation, but not Demonstration.  Naturally, commercialization processes and incubation processes are obviously both demonstration projects. Would support for demonstration projects be acceptable in some form, not funding the capital for deployment, but other commercialization support associated with demonstration projects?  
A: Applied Research and Development refers to new technologies at the pilot demonstration stage or earlier.  Market facilitation is addressing non-technical barriers by bringing new technologies to the market through services such as consulting and market analyses.  Direct funding support for the development and demonstration of new technologies is excluded in this solicitation. See pages 13-14 of the solicitation manual. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. 
37. Q: On pg. 13 of the solicitation manual for Project Requirements under Applied Research and Development: Market Facilitation Stages, do you consider the purposes of technology demonstration deployment stage to be Market Facilitation?
A: Please see the response to question 36. 
38. Q: Is the intent for this solicitation that activities support the advancement of technologies and entrepreneurial efforts, and not the development and demonstration of new technologies?
A: Please see the response to question 36. 
39. Q: We are aware of innovation incubators located in the Bay Area. Is the intent by the Energy Commission for the applicant to provide something along the same lines as the innovation incubators in the Bay Area? If not, what is the difference?
A: The intent of the solicitation is twofold. The first intent is to leverage the region’s resources, such as innovation incubators, to enhance or expand the services available to entrepreneurs in each region. The second intent is to connect energy innovations to region-specific needs.
40. Q: How would you compare the intent of this solicitation and the services it will provide with what we might call private entrepreneurial incubator organization?
A: The intent of this solicitation is meant to leverage the efforts being made by different incubators and accelerators by bringing them together in a more coordinated fashion, especially across the state.
41. Q: Since the focus for Innovation Clusters is not demonstration but on commercialization – is the intention to help entrepreneurs focus on customer adoption?
A: The primary focus of this solicitation is to provide entrepreneurial support to increase the likelihood that promising energy innovations are successfully developed and commercialized.
42. Q: Can you provide clarification on improving the types of services the Innovation Cluster provides? Are the Innovation Cluster notional entities or is there already physical infrastructure for each cluster?
A: Applicants should describe their vision for the Innovation Cluster in the proposal.  Specifically, they should describe how the applicant will bring together different groups to accelerate energy innovation in the region. 
43. Q: Can you give an example of what the market facilitation activity "program tracking" would entail? 
A: Program tracking activities are not funded under this solicitation.
44. Q: Is there any vision for linking this project to leverage what already has been done with the centers for alternative fuels project? Would that be an enhancing feature for this solicitation? 
A: There is no vision for linking this project to leverage what has been done with the centers for alternative fuels project. This could be an enhancing feature in a proposal if the applicant can show how linking the two projects will provide increased benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers.
45. Q: I work with community scale forest bioenergy projects under SB 1122.  One of the biggest barriers for these innovative and multi-benefit projects is cost of grid interconnection due to IOU technology requirements.  Would an eligible use of these grant funds include technology negotiations with the IOUs in order to come up with lower cost alternatives related to interconnection? 
A: This would be an eligible use of these grant funds. 
46. Q: Is the grant funding used to support the tech R&D and not the innovator directly?  This is somewhat unclear.
A: Yes, the grant funding will support the tech R&D and will not provide funds for the innovator. The SEED Initiative RFP will provide direct funding to the innovator.
[bookmark: _Toc433723935]Cluster Technology Focus
47. Q: What technology topics are covered and would they include technologies beyond electricity, such as water energy nexus or natural gas?
A: Technology topics must provide electricity benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers, consistent with the 2012-2014 and 2015-2017 EPIC Investment Plans. See page 14 of the solicitation manual for a list of benefit metrics. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. Technologies involving the water-energy nexus are eligible if they provide benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers in the form of electricity savings. Technologies that improve the end-use energy efficiency of natural gas or advance natural gas vehicles provide benefits to natural gas ratepayers and are not covered in this solicitation.
48. [bookmark: _Ref432069798]Q: When we talk about technologies covered under the EPIC program, do we include advanced vehicles, V2G, EVSE, charging, grid management? Do you consider those advanced or electricity type projects?
A: The EPIC program supports the seamless integration of plug-in electric vehicles (PEVs) into the electricity grid. Transportation research under EPIC solicits creative and innovative approaches to managed charging and bi-directional grid integration strategies that benefit and not adversely affect grid reliability. Transportation research will also pursue topics that help improve the value proposition of PEVs through research in battery 2nd use and advanced battery recycling. Technologies related to these efforts would be eligible for support in this solicitation.
49. Q: Is transportation considered part of the energy technology targets (innovation to alternative fuels or electric vehicle eligibility)? 
A: Please see the response to question 48.  
50. Q: Which technologies/projects are the main focuses of this solicitation?
A: The solicitation manual requires applicants to describe the technology topics that will be the focus of the cluster. Technologies must provide benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers in IOU service territories.  See page 14 of the solicitation manual. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. 
[bookmark: _Toc433723936]Ratepayer Benefits
51. Q: Many potential benefits in the tri-annual investment plans are indirect. Would metrics involving the number of companies supported in the cluster, which companies received funding, and the number of jobs created, be acceptable? 
A: Yes, the evaluation of California’s IOU electric ratepayer benefits could include number of companies supported in the cluster, which companies received funding, and number of jobs created. However, the metrics should go beyond the benefits provided to supported companies and consider the contribution of the cluster to the development of technologies and strategies by supported companies and the subsequent benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers.
52. [bookmark: _Ref433362381]Q: Are there any pre-defined metrics that the CEC will use in order to track and demonstrate benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers?
A: The CPUC decision 12-05-037 defines activities that provide benefits as those activities that “promote greater reliability, lower costs, increased safety, and/or enhanced environmental sustainability in the specific context of the provision of energy services See page 14 of the solicitation manual for a list of benefit metrics. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. An example of a technology that provides indirect benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers include a water-efficiency related technology whose use decreases the total electrical consumption of an activity.
53. Q: Page 16 of the manual describes complementary guiding principles to key California’s IOU electric ratepayer benefits. Can you explain whether or not our application should address the complementary benefits our services will provide to ratepayers?
A: Please see the response to question 52.
54. Q: Regarding scoring criteria on impacts and benefits to California’s IOU electric ratepayers, can guidance be provided on specific benefits? For example, disparate benefit measures exist and it might be difficult to compare the different applicant’s analyses.
A:  Please see the response to question 52.
[bookmark: _Toc433723937]Budget
55. Q: In regards to the budget attachment form on pg. 18, does the subcontractor need to submit a budget form detailing their expected expenditures if it is over $100,000?
A: The subcontractors are required to submit a detailed budget form only if their expenses are equal to or over $100,000.  
56. Q: Where would rent fall into the budget spreadsheet?
A: Rent would be categorized as Overhead in the Budget Spreadsheet.
57. Q: Do you have a preference if an applicant submits a smaller discrete set of services at $1 million rather than a $5 million package?  
A: Applicants must demonstrate in their application how the proposed project will provide the best support structure for entrepreneurs in a cost effective manner.  If this can be done at a lower cost in a particular region, that is acceptable. However, failing to provide key services in an effort to lower the total project cost is not optimal.
58. Q: Is there a disadvantage to proposing a budget requesting the maximum amount of funds available as long as the applicant has adequate resources and match funding identified? Does the evaluation emphasize the overall value the applicant is delivering?
A: There is not inherent disadvantage to requesting any funding level. Applicants must propose and support their approach for meeting the needs of the entrepreneurs in the region using the requested budget, and show that the project will provide strong value for the requested funds.  
59. Q: The prime contractor for an Innovation Cluster cannot with certainty determine the budgetary level of engagement for their subcontractors for a five year period since each entrepreneur engaged will have a different set of needs. For example, one might need extensive pilot testing whereas another needs marketing and workforce development assistance. Therefore, what would be the contractual mechanism to reallocate budgeted funds from underutilized Subcontractor A to over-utilized Subcontractor B? Is there a limit as to how much subcontractor funding can be reallocated in a year? In the life of the contract? The five year length of this grant and the variability of the entrepreneurs’ needs will require the CEC to be flexible in reallocating subcontractor funding. (It is assumed that all subcontractors are identified and are a part of the original proposal.) 
A: There is flexibility in budget reallocations. Certain changes require Executive Director approval. There is no set maximum amount that may be reallocated. All reallocations are evaluated on a case by case basis. 
60. Q: Regarding allowable purchases, for the participants if they were to have conferences and travel related activities for the contractors and not the entrepreneurs, would this count as allowable expenses on the items in the budget form?
A: Those expenses could be allowable, but some justification would need to be provided on how the expenses would benefit the entrepreneurs served by the Cluster. The Energy Commission reserves the right to evaluate the justification before final approval of all travel. Applicants are encouraged to use match funding for such activities.
61. Q: Can applicants front load the spend down of the project's matching dollars? In other words, can a grant's match funding be split unevenly (i.e. not always a 50-50 split) over the course of the grant?  Ex: A program manager's staff time is billed 100% as match contribution (i.e. $0 from the CEC) and the next year that position's staff time is billed 100% to the CEC).  Please clarify the invoicing rules in regards to allocating and invoicing match funding over the course of a grant.
A: Yes, applicants can front load match fund expenditures. Any match fund expenditures that meet all match funding requirements found on pages 8-9 of the solicitation manual are allowed. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. 
62. Q: Under the SEED-TAC, since it is a requirement in the statement of work for another GFO for a representative from the Innovation Cluster to serve on this advisory committee, are those reimbursable expenses under the Innovation Clusters?
A: Applicants for the Innovation Clusters solicitation should budget no more than $100,000 to serve on the SEED Advisory Committee (SEED-TAC). Funding for this requirement can be EPIC funds or can be counted toward match funding.
[bookmark: _Toc433723938]Match Funding and Allowable Purchases
63. Q: Are POU’s ineligible to provide match funds?
A: There are no restrictions on who can provide match funding. However, match funding must go towards activities that will benefit California IOU electric ratepayers.
64. Q: Are existing facilities eligible under match funding?
A: Existing facilities are not eligible for match funding.  However, equipment used at the facility site may be eligible for match. See pages 8-10 of the solicitation manual. The solicitation manual for GFO-15-306 can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-306. 
65. Q: If there is an organization that is locally based that is already providing similar types of services within a region, can the membership who supports that organization be counted as match funding?
A: Yes, funds currently collected for the support of similar activities could be counted toward the match funding requirement.
66. [bookmark: _Ref431982551]Q: A number of efforts might have been funded by AB 118 through Universities or Ihubs, which in some cases receive state funding. Can other state funding even if it is from the Energy Commission be utilized as match?
A: Energy Commission funds are not eligible for match funding. Other state, federal, or private funds are eligible to be counted as match as long as they are not future or contingent awards.
67. Q: At the LA workshop, it was stated that the membership dues of existing Innovation Clusters can be counted as match funding if they are concurrent to the grant, relevant to the Scope of Work and otherwise not obligated as match funding to any other project. Would you please confirm this answer?
A: Please see the response to question 66.
68. Q: Are there limitations to matching capital coming from other Federal, State or local public sources? Also, if matching capital is used for investments into incubated companies, it seems that the implication is that this would give the CEC and related entities control of the IP as well.  If this is not the case please confirm.
A: There are no limitations to matching capital from other Federal, State, or local public sources.  The Energy Commission and related entities will have no control over the IP of incubated companies. Please see the response to question 12.
[bookmark: _Toc433723939]Interaction Between GFO-15-306 & Other Energy Commission Funding Opportunities 
69. Q: Could you conceptually describe the relationship between Innovation Clusters and SEED Initiative?
A: The Innovation Clusters are envisioned to be a natural place for successful SEED Initiative funded projects to go to for key services, assistance, resources, and infrastructure needed by entrepreneurs and researchers in the region to successfully develop and commercialize their energy innovations. In addition, a representative from each Cluster will serve on the SEED-TAC. See pages 20-21 of RFP-15-305 for a description of the SEED-TAC and its responsibilities which include:
· Score proposals and make final recommendations for each solicitation for Series A support (see Task 4).
· Nominate applicants that have received Series A funding to participate in the Business Plan Competition (see Task 5).
· Provide input and recommendations to the Contractor on guidance for recipients of Series A and Series B support.  The guidance may include directing recipients to technical experts and cluster services that can best assist them in developing and commercializing their energy concept (See Task 7).
· Provide recommendations to the Contractor on ways to improve the SEED Initiative to meet the goals and objectives of the agreement (See Task 7)

70. Q: Can the Energy Commission expand on the linkages between the Regional Energy Innovation Cluster solicitation and the SEED initiative solicitation?
A: Please see the response to question 69.
71. Q: One of the answers in the Q&A sessions suggested that startups currently working with a regional cluster would be excluded from participating in the SEED program Series A & Series B funding. Can you clarify this? If universities, university-affiliated programs and community/university competitions are identified as part of a cluster, are companies participating and graduating from those programs not eligible for Series A under SEED?
A: Please see the Questions and Answers for RFP-15-305: Sustainable Energy Entrepreneur Development Initiative.
72. Q: Can ventures outside California apply for Series A and B funding and be supported through cluster activities? If so, what might be the requirements for a California presence?
A: Entrepreneurs must be registered with the California Secretary of State, be in good standing, and their project must be located in California to be eligible for SEED Initiative Series A and Series B funding. To be supported through cluster activities, ventures must be located in California or planning to locate to California if selected to receive Cluster services.
73. Q: Can the project manager (or PI) position be proposed as a third party, independent, unbiased professional who is contracted to run the SEED?
A:  Please see the Questions and Answers for RFP-15-305: Sustainable Energy Entrepreneur Development Initiative.
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